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Some Leaders

of the A. 1. E. E. .
_William Joseph Hammer, Vice-President of the Insti-
tute (1891-2 and 3), Manager (1893-4-5 and 6) and a
Life Member and Fellow, was born at Cressona, Penn-
sylvania, February 26, 1858. His early education was
acquired at private and public schools in Newark,
N. J., supplemented by attendance at university and
technical school lectures abroad. \

In 1878 he became an assistant to Edward Weston in
the Weston Malleable Nickle Company and in Decem-
ber, 1879, entered Edison’s laboratory at Menlo Park,
N. J., as general assistant. For a time he had charge
of the tests and records on the incandescent lamps, and
in 1880 was made the first Chief Engineer of the Edison
Lamp Works at Menlo Park, which turned out 50,000
Edison lamps his first year. In October, 1881, he was
sent by Mr. Edison to the Paris Electrical Exposition,
on his way to London to become Chief Engineer of the
English Edison Co. Here he constructed the first cen-
tral station for incandescent electric lighting in the
world, of 3,000 lamps, at 57 Holborn Viaduct, London,
which started up January 12, 1882, and employed 2,
and later 3, “Jumbo” 30-ton Edison dynamos.* At
the same time he installed the large plant using 12 60-
light Edison dynamos at the Crystal Palace Electric
Exposition and also Edison’s Paris Exhibit.

In 1883 he was offered the posts of Chief Engineer
of both the French and the German Edison Companies
and he accepted the post of Chief Engineer of the Ger-
man Edison Company (now known as the Allegemeine
Elektricitaets Gesellschaft), putting in many plants
throughout Germany. Mr. Hammer invented the auto-
matic motor-driven “flashing” electric lamp sign (now
universal), placing it upon the Edison Pavilion at the
Berlin Health Exposition in 1883. In 1884 he returned
to the United States, taking charge of Mr. Edison’s
personal interests and 8 KEdison Companies at the
Franklin Institute Electrical Exhibition, later becom-
ing confidential assistant to President Johnson of the
parent Edison Company, and, with E. H. Johnson and
Frank J. Sprague, became an incorporator and trustee
of The Sprague Electric Railway and Motor Co. and its
first Secretary. In 1884-5 he was Chief Inspector of
Central Stations of the Edison Company. In 1886-7 he
was Chief Engineer and General Manager of the Bos-
ton Edison Company. Acting as a contractor, he laid
$140,000 worth of Edison underground tubing, and
with the Sprague agents installed 98 Sprague motors.
Later, acting as an independent engineer, he completed
the 8,000-light plant of the Ponce de Leon Hotel at St.
Augustine, Fla., overhauled the Jacksonville Edison
Plant, which had been struck by lightning, and installed
$40,000 worth of electrical effects at the Cincinnati
Exposition of 1888. He has made many technical re-
ports here and abroad and acted as expert in patent
litigation, etc.

Mr. Edison appointed him his personal representa-
tive at the Paris Exposition of 1889. Here he set up
and operated all Edison inventions, a work for which
in 1925 (34 years later), through the personal efforts
of Mr. Edison, he was made Chevalier of the Legion of
Honor by the French Government.

For his elaborate experiments in telephone relaying
between New York and Philadelphia on February 4,
1889, Mr. Hammer received the John Scott Medal from
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the Franklin Institute on February 5, 1902. Talking
and music were sent through the air 5 times and
through 15 separate mediums, the physical character-
istics of the sound waves being changed 48 times in
transmission and broadcasted by telephone from the
Franklin Institute to 14 cities. Some of these experi-
ments were repeated before the Electrical Jury at Paris
in 1889. He was a Delegate to the International Elec-
trical Congress at Paris in 1900. In 1896 he was Pres-
ident of the National Conference upon Standard Elec-
trical Rules, which originated “The National Electric
Code” ; Vice-President of the New York Electrical So-
ciety and The Aeronautical Society. In 1889 he made
a balloon flight across France; was Chairman of the
Jury on Telegraphy, Telephony and Wireless at the
St. Louis Exposition of 1904, and Chairman James-
town Celebration Aeronautical Congress of 1907, and
in 1909 one of a syndicate owning first airplane ever
sold. Also expert and Secretary of The Aeronautics
Commission of the Hudson-Fulton Celebration (1909),
built hangars on Governors Island and made contracts
with Wilbur Wright and Glenn Curtiss to fly, and in
1911 published a complete Aeronautical Chronology of
Aviation, distributing free 22,000 copies. He has tes-
tified as an expert for the Wright Bros. in their air-
plane litigation.

In 1906 the Franklin Institute conferred upon him
the “Elliott Cresson” gold medal for his “Historical
Collection of Incandescent Electric Lamps,” a work of
34 years. This “History of an Art” also received a
silver medal at the Crystal Palace Exposition in 1882
and “The Grand Prize” from the St. Louis Exposition
in 1904.

In 1902 Mr. Hammer brought from the Curie Lab-
oratory in Paris 9 tubes of radium and took up actively
work with radium. He delivered 88 lectures on radium
before universities, colleges, scientific societies, etc. He
wrote the first book published upon radium (1903) and
proposed and used radium for cancer and tumor treat-
ment. He also, in 1902, invented the “Radium Lumi-
nous Materials,” which are now universally used for
instrument dials, etc. He has done considerable orig-
inal laboratory work upon selenium, radium, X-rays,
cathode rays, ultra violet rays, phosphorescence, fluo-
rescence, cold light, wireless, television, etc., and has
contributed much to technical literature.

He is a Fellow of the American Physical Society,
and the American Association for the Advancement of
Science and the A. I. E. E., was one of the founders of
the Edison Medal Fund in 1908 and a member of its
Executive Committee and President of the Edison Pi-
oneers in 1920. During the World War Mr. Hammer
served as Major on the General Staff of the U. S. Army
at the Army War College, Washington, D. C., being
attached to the Inventions Section of the War Plans
Division and later to the Operations Division at the
War Department, in charge of Electrical and Aeronau-
tical War Inventions. He also did special work at the
U. 8. Patent Office at times, marking and holding up
certain patents likely to convey information to the en-
emy, and acting as member of the Advisory Board of
Experts attached to the Alien Property Commission.
He was elected Historian General of The Military Or-
der of the World War (1926-7-8-9) and a member of
The Society of American Military Engineers, and he
has served on the general staff of both organizations.

*The New York Edison Co. started up its Pearl Street Plant, the first Central Station in the United States, with 400 lights on

September 4, 1882.
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= enemy and acted as a member of tie aAdvisory Board of Experts attached
In 1896 he was President of the National Conference upon
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standard Electrical Rules which originated "The Natlonal Llectric

Code", Pres. Franklin Experimental Club (1830-2) and Vice President
T.Y. Blecs Society and The Aeronsutical Society of America.
Expert and secretary of The fAeronautics Come of the Hudson Fulton
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La | He has represented the Institute here and abroad at = 'A;
f Conzresses, Conventlons, Hall of tha; ~and' White House Ceremonies,etc.)’ '
| and on various committees. f)v
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B niactid. Historien General of The Military Order of the World War ";

L | (1926-7-8) and, a member of The Society of American Mllitary Engineers.
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